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February 4, 2012 
 
 
Ann Arbor Planning Commission Members 
 
 
RE: 413 E Huron Site Plan Application. Background and response to communication 
 from Ray Detter and the Downtown Design Guidelines Citizen Review Committee 
 dated  January 3, 2013 (the “Letter”)   
 
Members of the Planning Commission: 
 
This letter seeks to provide a background on the efforts of the development team on this 
project to date, respond to several assertions made about this project in the Letter referenced 
above and to request that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the project 
because the site plan meets or exceeds the requirements for a positive recommendation and 
approval.   
 
The proposed 413 E. Huron project (the “Project”) is a use by right project that conforms in all 
respects to both the letter and the intent of the Ann Arbor zoning code for the D1 district 
(Downtown Core). The development team has carefully followed the prescribed process for 
submission and review of the project and has worked closely with city staff to respond to all 
comments regarding attention to design recommendations and compliance with zoning and 
other relevant and development regulations. In addition to the required design review and 
citizen participation meetings, the development team has met on multiple occasions with 
community representatives and neighborhood groups to listen to their comments and 
concerns and has made every practical effort to respond to their input. 
 
The Project was discussed with the Design Review Board (“DRB”) on October 17th. While 
adherence to the Design Guidelines is voluntary, the development team has made every 
reasonable effort to comply with these important guidelines. The assertion that the DRB made 
a “number of significant suggestions that have been ignored” and that the DRB session 
“resulted in almost universal disapproval” of the project are not accurate. The DRB provided 
thoughtful and constructive comments on various aspects of the design, in addition to 
compliments on “impressive material palette.” In response to the DRB comments and 
summary report, the development team made a series of substantial design changes that 
significantly increased development costs. These design changes responded to the vast 
majority of comments received from the DRB and were detailed in the November 26th Site 
Plan submission (also attached here).  
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The Letter focuses in particular on the scale and massing of the Project, claiming that it is too 
large for this site and that the Design Guideline suggestions to divide the massing into smaller 
building modules have been ignored. In terms of scale, we note again that this project is 
designed to conform in all respects to the zoning ordinance for the D1 district. That ordinance 
allows for a building up to 150 feet in height on this site, and in fact encourages high density 
development through the use of multiple density bonuses, the most significant of which is for 
residential use. This project uses some, but not all, of the available density bonuses. In terms of 
massing, the project meets the required rear yard setback to the adjacent residential 
properties, and exceeds the side setback requirement significantly (providing 25 foot setback 
where none is required) which was a deliberate decision by the development team in order to 
respect the neighboring high rise condominium project. In addition, the building has been 
designed to break up the scale and mass into “smaller building modules that provide a sense 
of scale” as prescribed in the Design Guidelines. Careful attention has been paid to varying the 
material palette and the plane of the building façade on the elevations to achieve this goal and 
to create a “building in the round.” 
 
The Letter asserts that the development team has “completely ignored” the fact that this 
project is in a “specially identified Design Guidelines Character Area.” First, any project in a D1 
or D2 zoned district is subject to specific design guidelines based upon the defined intent of 
the character district in the zoning ordinance.  Second, the assertion is simply not accurate. The 
design of the Project recognizes its context and is entirely within the range of building designs 
that exist in the East Huron 1 Character District. The language defining that Character District 
specifically points to the variation in building type – “Buildings in these districts vary in type, 
from a major hotel, to high-rise housing, to church properties.”, When the City implemented 
D1 zoning, its  description of the East Huron 1 Character District recognized the contrast in 
scale that already existed between the taller structures on the North side of E. Huron, such as 
Sloan Plaza and the hotel and the adjacent residential areas: “There is a significant contrast 
between the massing and scale of the structures within the character districts and the 
residential scale of the adjacent historic neighborhoods .”  The City dealt with that existing 
contrast by imposing the 30-foot setback and building offset standards in the East Huron 1 
Character district. The purpose of those standards is to provide the necessary massing 
transition between the D1 and residential zoning districts.  The Project provides even more 
transition than required by the zoning ordinance because it included the 25-side setback to 
Sloan Plaza.  Contrary to public comments, the design guidelines and ordinance standards for 
the East Huron 1 Character District do not require front yard setbacks or open space.  The front 
yard open space standard applies to buildings in the East Huron 2 Character District.  The 
Project has a secondary building frontage designation.  Under the zoning ordinance, “a range 
of building setbacks from the front property line is acceptable.” The minimum standard is “0” 
feet.  
 
The Letter also contains 12 specific concerns that the authors claim should be addressed. The 
following points are made in reference to these 12 items:  
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1) The city has indeed reviewed the traffic study and agrees with its conclusion that no major 
traffic impacts will be created by the project. MDOT has also reviewed the traffic study, agreed 
with its conclusion that no major traffic impacts will be created by the project and had no 
comments on the site plan. 
 
2) The service drive design has been worked on and revised several times. The reviewing staff 
is confident that this drive has the appropriate visual access to make it safe under normal 
operating conditions. 
 
3) While the Project will create some shading for the properties to the north, claims and 
illustrations about this shading have been exaggerated in the Letter. The development team 
has submitted an accurate, year-round shading study to the city as part of the plans for the 
project and this study depicts the actual shading impacts of the building compared to the 
already existing shade. Moreover, the City recognized and dealt with the shading potential 
when it rezoned the Property to D1 in 2009.  The purpose of the restriction in the East Huron 1 
Character District that limits the location of the rear or side exterior wall of the tower from the 
East Huron property line to 150 feet is to protect parcels from shadows cast by taller buildings 
in the East Huron 1 Character District.   
 
4) The design of the building has been modified per the request of the DRB to create a 
“signature building” element on the Huron and Division corner through the use of double 
height corner entry, an all-glass corner, and a higher roof line. Further setback from the 
property line for the first three stories of the building is not allowed for under the zoning 
ordinance (no more than 1 foot setback allowed).  
 
5) Wind shear is not a scientific consideration applied to building construction. It applies to 
meteorological events and is a primary concern around airports.  
 
6) The fire marshal has reviewed the proposed design and approved it with several 
recommendations which are now incorporated into the design. It meets all the requirements 
for fire protection of high rise buildings. 
 
7) The City engineers have reviewed this project for capacities and find it meets the available 
services for this area with minor requested changes now incorporated into the design. 
 
8) Roof top mechanical equipment will be at a height of 150 feet above the street, behind 
architectural screens. All equipment will be approved for use in this context by the city and 
there is no evidence to suggest noise impact on neighboring properties. 
 
9) This is not a requirement of the City. The required landscape buffering has been applied to 
this design. Additional fencing is being provided over and above this requirement to meet 
certain adjacent neighbor requests. 
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10) The proposed building’s foundation has been modified to allow setbacks from landmark 
trees to minimize impacts to the “critical root zone” of these trees as required by the City. 
 
11) The site plan has been reviewed by city staff and no request has been made of the 
development team for a “gateway planting feature” on the Division Street frontage. 
 
12) The project’s use of the residential density premium is entirely consistent with the D1 
zoning ordinance and this has been confirmed by the city planning staff in their review of the 
Project. 
 
In summary, this project has been thoughtfully designed to conform to the letter and intent of 
the D1 zoning district. The process for design and public input has been followed, with several 
additional meetings having taken place at the request of neighborhood groups and significant 
changes have been made to the design to accommodate the comments received throughout 
this process. City staff has thoroughly reviewed the site plan application, agrees that it 
complies with the applicable ordinance requirements and as such has issued a 
recommendation to the planning commission to approve the site plan application.  For all of 
these reasons, we will be asking that you recommend that the City Council approve the site 
plan.  
 
Regards, 

 
Conor P. McNally 
Carter 
 
 
 










